: B-138, lind Floor, Navakaar Building,
K M G S & Assoczates Mohammadpur, Bhikaiji Cama Place,

Chartered Accountants New Delhi-110066, Telefax : 41859904

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of
Kujjal Hotels Private Limited
(formerly Kujjal Builders Private Limited)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Kujjal Hotels Private Limited
(formerly Kujjal Builders Private Limited) (“the Company”) which comprise the Balance
Sheet as at March 31, 2020, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including the statement of Other
Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of cash flows
for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory

wnformation (hereinafter referred to as “the financial statements”).

In our opiion and 1o the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Compantes Act, 2013
(‘the Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Compantes (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended, (‘Ind-AS’) and other accounting principles

generally accepted in India,

(1) of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2020;
(i)  1its loss including other comprehensive income;

(i) the changes in equity for the year ended on that date and
(1v)  1ts cash flow statement.

Basis of opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing, as specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibiliies under these
standards are further described in the “Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statement” scction of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with
the independence requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under
the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and ICAT’s code of Fthics. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained s sufficient and appropriate to provide a basts tor our
audit opinton on the financial statements.

Emphasis of matter

We draw attention to Note 49 to the financial statements, which describes the possible effect of
uncertainties relating to COVID-19 pandemic on the Company’s financial performance as
assessed by the Management.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matter.
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of other information. The
other information comprises the information included jn the Management Discussion, Board’s
Report including, annexures to Board’s Report, Corporate Governance and Stakeholder’s
tnformation, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
E€xpress any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibi]ity is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or pur knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the fatters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of
the financial position, financia] performance including other Comprehensive Income and
Changes in Equity of the Company and cash flows of the company in accordance with the Ind-
AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropuate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the Preparation and presentation of the
financial statements (hat give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the company or to cease the operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can asise from fraud or error and are considered
material 1f, tndwvidually or in an aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic dectsions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements,
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

® Identify and assess the risks of materal musstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and approprate to provide a basis for our opinion. The rsk of
not detecting a material misstatement resul ting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions , Misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control,

® Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section143(3)(i) of the Act,
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls,

® Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related 1o events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that 2 material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

® Lvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of
the financial statements may be influenced, We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in (1) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and
(it) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and wherever applicable, related safeguards,
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

I. - As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), as amended,
issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of
the Act, we give in ‘Annexure A’, 2 statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and
4 of the order.

(&)

a.

b.

d.

As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

. the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including statement of Other

Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the statement of cash

flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account;

in our opinion, the aforesaid financial staterments comply with the Accounting Standards

specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)

Rules, 2014 and Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015, as amended;

on the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2020

taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on

March 31, 2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Acr;

the reporting under section 143(3)(i) with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial

controls over the financial reporting of the company and the operating effectiveness of

such controls, refer our separate report in ‘Annexute B’. Our report expresses an

unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s

internal financial controls over financial teporting and

with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance

with Rule-11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to

the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

1. The company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
p{)sltltm.

ii. The company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

it. There were no amounts, required to be transferred by the company, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund.

tv. The disclosure requirements relating to holdings as well as dealing in specified bank
notes were applicable for the period from 8th November, 2016 to 31st December,
2016 which are not relevant to these consolidated financial statements. Hence,

reporting under tis clause is not applicable.

For KM G S & Associates,
Chartered Accountants

FRN: 04730N (5
'é &

&
tum JL:& i
Sundeep Jindal '
Partner

Membership number: 095051
UDIN: 20095051 AAAAAS3465
Place: New Delhi Date: 27" August, 2020
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“Annexure A” to the Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading ‘Report on Other Legal & Regulatory
Requirement’ section of our report of even date on the financial statements of the Company for
the year ended March 31, 2020

Re:  Kujjal Hotels Private Limited (formetly Kujjal Builders Private Limited)
(‘the company’)

1) (@) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of tixed assets;

(b) The Fixed Assets have been physically verified by the management during the year and
no materal discrepancies between the books records and the phystcal fixed assets have been
noticed on such verification. In our opinion, the frequency of verification of the fixed assets
is reasonable having regard to the size of the company and nature of its business;

(¢) According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the ritle
deeds of immovable property ate held in the name of the co mpany.

2) (a) The management has conducted (he physical verification of ventory at reasonable
intervals.

(b) The discrepancies noticed on physical verification of the inventory as compared to
books records which has been properly dealt with in the books of account were not
material,

3) The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited
Luability partaerships or other parties covered in the Register maintained under section 189
of the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(ii)(a) to (c) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

4)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company
has complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in
respect of loans, investments, guarantees, and security, as applicable.

5) The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public and hence the directives issued
by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant
provisions of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2015 with regard
to the deposits accepted from the public are not applicable.

6) Asinformed to us, the maintenance of Cost Records has not been specified by the Central
Government under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act, in respect of the activities
carried on by the company.
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7) (a) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our

examination of the books of account, and records, the Company has generally been regular
in depositing the undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees State
Insurance, Income-Tax, Goods & Service Tax, Value Added Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty
of Excise, Cess and any other statutory dues with the appropriate authorities,

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of the above were in arrears as at March 31, 2020 for a period of more
than six months from the date on when they become payable.

(¢) According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no dues of income
tax, Goods & Service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax outstanding on
account of any dispute.

Nature of Nature of Forum where Petrlizda:::oz::c}l Amount
statute duf:_s | dispute is pending  relates | (in Rs lakhs)

Finance Act, Service Tax Addl. Commissioner, | FY 2013-2014 to 135.49
1994 PEIEE ™™ | GST, Chandigarh FY 2016-2017 -

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not defaulted in the repayment of dues to banks.

Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by
the management, the company has not raised moneys by way of mital public offer or
further public offer including debt instruments and term loans. Accordingly, the provisions
of clause 3(ix) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented
upon.

10) Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true & fair view

of the financial statements and according to the information and explanations given by the
management, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the company by its officers or
employees has been noticed or reported during the yvear except for the instance of
misappropriation of cash by employce of the Compan y amounting to Rs.23.03 lakhs
relating to discrepancy in physical cash in hand and cash as per general cash book
during process of internal audit. We are informed that the Company has completed
its investigation and has filed an FIR against the employee. The Company had
lodged insurance fidelity claim and the amount of insurance claim has been
received. Further, the Company has also terminated the setvices of the said
employee.

11) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by

the management, the company paid/provided managerial remuneration in accordance with
the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to
the Companies Act, wherever applicable.

12) In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 4

(xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.
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13) According to the information and explanations given to us by the management & in our
opinion, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188
of Companies Act, 2013 and the details have been disclosed in the Financial Statements as
required by the applicable accounting standards.

14) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by
the management, the co mpany has not made any preferential allotment or private placement
of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review. Accordingly,
the provisions of clause 3(xiv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence
not commented upon.

15) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by
the management, the company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors
or persons connected with him as referred to in section 192 of Companies Act, 2013.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(xv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company
and hence not commented upon.

16) In our opinion, the company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(xvi) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon,

For KM G S & Associates,
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 04730N

fund

Sundeep Jindal

Partner
Membership number: 095051
UDIN: 20095051AAAAAS3465

Place: New Delhi
Date: 27" August, 2020
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“Annexure B” to the Independent Auditor’s Report

Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under the heading ‘Report on Other Legal & Regulatory
Requirement’ section of our report of even date on the financial statements of the Company for
the year ended March 31, 2020

Ref: Kujjal Hotels Private Limited (formerly Kujjal Builders Private Limited)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Kujjal Hotels Private
Limited (formerly Kujjal Builders Private Limited) (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2020 in
conjunction with our audit of the Financial statements of the Company for the year ended on
that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is tesponsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the “Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting” issued by the Institute of
Chartered  Accountants of India (ICAT). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company’s policies, the saleguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”)
and the Standards on Auditing as specified & issued by 1CAT and deemed to be prescribed under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and
if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, asscssing the risk that a material weakness
extsts, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial
rt‘porring.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's intemal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures thar:

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting prnciples,
and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls aver financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management overtide of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the nsk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2020, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For KM G $ & Associates,

Chartered Accountants

FRN: 04730N

Sundeep Jindal " '

Partner

Membership number: 095051

UDIN: 20095051 AAAAAS3465

Place: New Delhi Date: 27" August, 2020
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(Al amount Rs in Lacs)

KUJJAL HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED
( Earlier known as Kujjal Buildees Pyt Lid )
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020
CIN No - U55100DL2005P T'C139829
Regd Office: 51&52, Ground floor, World Trade Centre, Barakhamba Lane, New Delhi

Note No. As at As at

Particulars
Mar 2020 ( Rs) Mar ggwmsI
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
) Property, Plant and Equipment 2 28,889.75 39,314.05
b} Right of Use asset 2(i) 8,205.55 =
c) Other Intangibles Asssats 3 15.50 17.69
d) Financial Assets
(i} Loans 4 26.15 30.44
() Other Non Current Financial assets 5 457 02 457 .02
e) Other Non-Current Assets ] 100.26 100 28
f) Non-Current Tax Assets { Net) 7 17274 125.14
Total Non Current Assets 37,866.97 40,044.60
Current Assets
a) Inventories 8 124.70 120.99
b) Financial Assets
(1) Trade Receivables g 110.18 197 .08
(iiy Cash and Bank Equivalents 10 51.29 60.50
(i) Other Current Financial assets 1" 62.53 B5.34
c) Other Current Assets 12 577.17 594 49
Total Current Assets 825.87 1,038.38
Total Assets 38,792.84 41,062.98
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
a) Equity Share Capital 13 8,000.00 8,000.00
b) Deemed Equity Share Capital- Gross 13 28,885.11 28,518.11
Other Equity
1) Reserves & Surplus 14 {19,547.75) {17 468.40)
Equity attributable to the owners 17.337.36 19,049.71
Total Equity 17,337.36 19,049.71
Non-current liabilities
a) Financial Liabilities
(i} Borrowings 15 13,753.99 15,027.23
(i) Lease Liabilitizs 15(i) 1,505.97 =
b) Provisions 18 25.55 23.66
c) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Nat) 17 4.519.09 4 984 51
d) Other non-currant liablities 18 211.45 275.97
Total Non Current Liabilities 20,016.05 20,311.37
Current liabilities
a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 12 231.38 45573
(i} Trade Payables 20
*total cutstanding dues of creditors other than micro,small entarpnses 289.90 422.71
~tolal cutstanding dues of micro, small enterprises(Refer Note 42) 75.78 9.45
(Wi} Other Current Financial liabilities 21 646.81 561.22
b) Provisians 22 2539 27.45
c) Other Current Liabilities 23 180.07 245.34
Total Current Liabilities 1,439.43 1,721.80
Total Liabilities 38,792.84 41,082.98
Summary of Significant Accounnng Policies 1
The acenmpanying notes are an miegral of these financial siaement.
As prer o repont of even date acached
For KM G 8 & Associates For and on baghalfl of the Board of Directors
Charterted Accountggts
[N 047N ﬂ v L‘ u’/
¢ R =
Sundeep Jin (Vivek Shukla) (Reicky alra)
Partner Director Director
Membership No. (195051 (IDIN 08147944) (1IN |n=,x.;?n)|}
Place: New Dellu (L (,.»L
Date: 27.08.2020 (8 Malik)

CFO Company Secretary




KUJJAL HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED

{ Earlier known as Kujjal Builders Pyt Lud )

Statement of Reevenue and Expenditure for the vear ended March 31, 2020
CIN No - Us5 100D L2005 PTC139829

Regd Office: 51&52, Ground floor, World Trade Centre, Barakhamba L.

ane, New Delhi

Particulars Note No.  For the Yr ended For the Yr Ended
31 Mar'2020 |Rst 31 Marl‘UIB |Rs|
Revenue
Revenue from operations 24 4,561.38 4,644 50
Other income 25 8557 105,24
Interest Incame 26 37.64 31.83
Total income 4,684.59 4,781.57
Expenses
Cost of Food & Beverages consumed 27 588.01 650.15
Purchase of traded goods 28 1.16 1.07
Changes in inventories of traded goods 29 (0.20} 041
Employee benefits expense 30 776 46 899.81
Other expenses k)l 1,861.48 2,086.82
3,236.91 3,648.26
Earnings before interest cost, tax, depreciation and 1,447.68 1,133.31
amortisation
Finance costs 3z 189727 1,975.98
Depreciation and amortization expense 33 224037 2,236,03
Profit / (Loss) before tax (2,689.96) (3.078.70)
Exceptional Item N
[Profit / (Loss) before tax (2.689.96) (3,078.70)
Tax expense:
Current tax - 4
Deferred tax charge/(credit) (607.90) (751.11)
Total Tax Expense (607.90) (751.11)
Profit for the year (2,082.06) (2,327.59)
Other Comprehensive Income
1) tems that will not be reclassfied to Profit or Loss
) Remeasurements of the net defined banefit plans -
Actuarial Gain or Loss 375 4.50
Tax on above ltems (1.04) (1.25)
Total Other Comprehensive Income/(loss) net of Taxes 2.7 325
Total Comprehensive Incomel/(loss) (2,079.35) (2,324.34)
Earnings per equity share(for continuing operations)
1) Basic 39 (2.60) (2.91)
2) Diluted 39 (2.60) (2.91)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

1

The accompanying notes are an integral of these financial staternent.

As per our report of even date attached

ForKM G S & Assaciates
Charterted Accountants

FRN : 04730N @ BTG
Cundee il
Sundeep Tin§jal e S
Partner

Membership No. 095051

Place: New Delhi
Date: 27 08.2020

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

(Vivek Shukla)

Director
(DIN D8147944)

( H!AAVLJ(.

alik)

c

g%ay Kalra)
Director

(DIN 03584991)

(All amaunt Rs in Lacs)



Regd Office: 51&52, Ground

KUJJAL HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED
( Earlier known as Kujjal Builders Pvt Ltd )
CIN No - U55100DL2005PTC 139829

STANDALONE CASH FLOW STATEMENT

floor, World Trade Centre, Barakhamba Lane, New Delhi

Particulars

31.03.2020
(Rupees In Lacs)

31.03.2019
(Rupees In Lacs)

A CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit /(loss) before tax (2,689.96) (3,078.73)
Non-cash adjustnments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash
flows:
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 2,240.37 2,236.02
Loss/ (Profit) on sale of fixed assets (net) - 9.81
Interest Income {37.64) (31.83)
Interest and Finance Charges 1,897.27 1,975.99
Operating profit before working capital changes: 1,410.04 1,111.26
Movements in working capital:
-Trade receivables 86.88 183.84
-Loans and advances and other current assets 2012 (47.37)
-Inventories (3.71) (15.97)
-Liabilities and provisions (282.48) (766.63)
Cash Generated from Operations 1,230.85 465.14
Tax Paid - -
Net cash flow from /(used in) operating activities (a) 1,230.85 465.14
B CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of fixed assets (19.43) (27.56)
Interest received 37.64 31.83
Movement in margin money held as security (43.32) (55.04)
Net Cash flow from/(used in ) investing activities (b) (25.10) (50.77)
C CASH FLOWS FROM USED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from long term borrowings 746.82 2,768.51
Repayment of long term barrowings (64.52) (1,285.34)
Interest paid (1,897.27) (1,975.99)
Net Cash from/ (Used in ) financing activities (c) (1,214.97) (492.83)
NET (DECREASE)/ INCREASE IN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS (a+b+c) (9.21) (78.46)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 60.50 138.96
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR 51.29 60.50
COMPONENTS OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash on Hand 3.01 8.05
- Current accounts 48.28 52.45
51.29 60.50
0.00 {0.00)
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date
For K M G S & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Charterted Accountants f
FRN : 04730N , j; s’

Sundeep Jindal
Partner
Membership No. 095051

Place: New Delhi
Date: 27.08.2020

(Vivek Shukla)
Director
(DIN 08147944,

. [
(Sanjay Malik)
CFO

(Rocky Kalra)
Director
(DIN 03584991)

(Nupur Gupta)
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KUJJAL HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED
( Earlier known as Kujjal Builders Pvt Ltd )

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2020

A. Equity share capital (Note 13)

(Rs in Lacs)

As at March 31, 2020

As at March 31,

2019
As at beginning of the year 8,000.00 8,000.00
Change during the year: Deemed Equity added 28,885.11 28,518.11
As at end of the year 36,885.11 36,518.11

B. Other equity (Note 14)

Retained Earnings Total Other
Equity

For the year ended 31 March 2019

As at 1 April 2018 (15,144.06) (15,144.08)
Profit for the year (2,327.59) (2,327.59)
Other comprehensive income (net of tax) 3.25 3.25
Total comprehensive income (2,324.34) (2,324.34)
As at March 31, 2019 (17,468.40) (17,468.40)
For the year ended 31 March 2020

As at 1 April 2019 (17,468.40) (17,468.40)
Profit for the year (2,082.06) (2,082.06)
Other comprehensive income (net of tax) 2.71 2.71
Total comprehensive income (2,079.35) (2,324.37)
As at March 31, 2020 (19,547.75) (19,547.75)




KUJJAL HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED (formerly Kujjal Builders Pyt Ltd)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 2020

1. i) Corpaorate Information

Kujjal Hotels Private Limited (formerly Kujjal Builders Pvt Ltd) (“hereinafter referred as the
Company™) was incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 on August 22nd
2005. The company is Joint Venture between EILA Holding Limited (formerly EILA Builders
& Developers Ltd.) a subsidiary company of Deeksha Holding Limited, incorporated under The
Companies Act, 1956 and PCL. Hotels Limited (Formerly Prime Cellular Limited), a subsidiary
company of Bharat Hotels Ltd.. incorporated under Companies Act, 1956 governed by a Joint
Venture Agreement dated January 18th, 2007,

During the year 2018-19 the Company got its name changed from Kujjal Builders Private
Limited to Kujjal Hotels Private Limited. This name change was effective from 21" Feb, 2019
i.e the date on which Ministry of Corporate Affairs provided the Certificate of Incorporation

pursuant to name change,
The company is primarily engaged in the business of managing the hotels in India.

ii) Basis of Preparation

The standalone financial statements have been prepared by the management in accordance with
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended by the Companies (Indian Accounting  Standards)
(Amendment) Rules, 2016,

The standalone financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis using historical
cost convention and on an accrual method of accounting, except for the following assets and
liabilities which have been measured at fair value / amortised cost:

* Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy
regarding financial instruments),

¢ Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets have been carried at deemed cost
(which includes revalued amount of land and building at certain locations) on the date of
transition using the optional exemption allowed under Ind AS 101

The standalone financial statements are presented in INR, which is the Company’s presentation
currency as well as the functional currency for all its operations and all financial information are
presented in Indian Rupees, unless stated otherwise.

As at 31 March 2020 the total assets of the Company are Rs. 38,792.84 lacs (31 March 2019 Rs.
41,082.98 lacs) whereas the total liabilities of the Company are Rs. 21,455.48 lacs (31 March
2019: Rs. 22,033.27 lacs).Further, the accumulated losses at year-end are 31 March 2020 Rs.
19,547.75 lacs and 31 March 2019 are Rs, 17.468.40 lacs. The management has obtained
commitment of its parent company for continued financial and operating support and considers
it appropriate to prepare these financial statements on going concern basis,

[ _
—— \ :
T
' Iz }}
: \\ A\ /



KUJJAL HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED (formerly Kujjal Builders Pvt L td)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 2020

iii) Recent accounting developments

Ind AS 12, Appendix C, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

On March 30, 2019, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Ind AS 12, Appendix C,
Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments, which is to be applied while performing determination
of taxable profit (or loss), tax basis, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates. when
there is uncertainty over Income tax events under Ind AS 12, According to the Appendix,
companies need to determine the probability of the relevant tax authority accepting each tax
treatment, or group of tax treatments that the companies have used for plan to use in their income
tax filling which has to be considered to compute the most likely amount or the expected value of
the tax treatment when determining taxable profits (Lax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused
tax credit and tax rates.

The Company has evaluated the effect of this amendment on the financial statements and
concluded that there is no significant impact.

Amendment to Ind AS 12, Income taxes:

On March 30, 2019 the Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued amendments to the guidance in Ind
AS 12, Income taxes, in connection with accounting for dividend distribution tax.

The amendment clarifies that an entity shall recognize the Income tax consequences of dividends
in profit and loss, other comprehensive income or equity according to where the entity originally
recognize those past transaction or event .

Effective date of application of this amendment is annual period beginning on or after April 1,
2019. Since Dividend Distribution tax is not applicable with effect from April 1, 2020, this
amendment will have no impact on financial statement.

Amendment to Ind AS 19, plan amendment, curtailment or settlement:

On March 30, 2019, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued amendment to Ind AS 19, employee
benefits, in connection with accounting for plan amendments, curtailments and settlements.

Amendments require an entity:

* 1o use updated assumptions, to determine current service cost and net interest for the
reminder of the period afier plan amendments. curtailments and settlements and

* to recognize in Profit or loss as part of past service cost, or a gain or loss on settlement,
any reduction in surplus, even if that surplus was not previously recognized because of

the impact of assel ceiling.

Ltfective date for application for this amendment is annual period beginning on or after April I,
2019. The Company has evaluated the effect of this amendment on the financial statements and
concluded that this amendment is currently not applicable.




KUJJAL HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED (formerly Kujjal Builders Pyt Ltd)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 2020

Amendments to Ind 23 Borrowing Costs:

The amendments clarify that an entity treats as part of general borrowings any borrowing
originally made to develop a qualifying asset when substantially all of the activities necessary to
prepare that asset for its intended use or sale are complete.

An entity applies those amendments to borrowing costs incurred on or after the beginning of the
annual reporting period in which the entity first applies those amendments. An entity applies
those amendments for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 01 April, 2019, The
Company has evaluated the effect of this amendment on the financial statements and concluded
that this amendment is currently not applicable,

Significant Accounting Policies:
a) Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/non-current
classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:

* Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

¢ Held primarily for the purpose of trading

* Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

»  Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

* Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

* Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading

* Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

* There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities,

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation
in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

b) Property, Plant and Equipment

Recognition and initial measurement:

Under the previous GAAP (Indian GAAP). property plant and equipment were carried in the

balance sheet at their respectivecarrying value. Using the deemed cost exemption available as
Al




KUJJAL HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED (formerly Kujjal Builders Pvt Ltd)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 2020

per Ind AS 101. the Company has elected to carry forward the carrying value of PPE under
Indian GAAP as on 31 March 2015 as book value of such assets under Ind AS as at the
transition date i.e. | April 2015,

Capital work in progress. plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the
plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition
criteria arc met. When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives.
Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of
the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair
and maintenance costs are recognised in statement of profit or loss as incurred. The present
value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use is included in the
cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision is met.

Subsequent measurement (depreciation and useful lives):

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on the straight-line method using the
rates arrived on the basis of the useful life which coincides with the useful life prescribed under
Schedule II of the Companies Act. 2013. The identified components are depreciated over their
useful lives; the remaining asset is depreciated over the life of the principal asset.

The Company has used the following rates to provide depreciation on its fixed assets:

Class of Assets Useful economic lives
estimated by the
management (Years)
Freehold Building 40*
Plant & Machinery 7.5-15
Furniture & Fixtures 8
Vehicles 8
Office Equipment’s - 5
Computers/Servers 3/5
Software 3 ]

(* During the year ended 31.03.2019 the management changed the estimate for useful life
of Building wherein from earlier 60 years it is revised to 40 years . The depreciation is
charged accordingly.)

Leasehold buildings are amortized on a straight line basis over the unexpired period of leasc or

useful life. whichever is lower.

The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation of are reviewed at each financial

year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate,

Depreciation on fixed assets added/disposed off during the year is provided on pro-rata basis
with reference to the date ol addition/disposal.




KUJJAL HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED (formerly Kujjal Builders Pvt Ltd)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 2020

d)

De-recognition:

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is
derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the profit
and loss statement when the asset is derecognized.

Intangible Assets

Recognition and initial measurement

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The
amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life
are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or
the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are
considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as
changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives
is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying
value of another asset.

Subsequent measurement:

The Company has capitalised computer software in the nature of software licenses as intangible
assets and the cost of software is amortized over the license period or three years, being their
expected useful economic life, whichever is lower.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Impairment of non-financial Assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may
be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required,
the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s or cash-generating units (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value
in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset. unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets.
When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is
considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

[n assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market




KUJJAL HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED (formerly Kujjal Builders Pvt Ltd)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 2020

€)

transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate
valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted
share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations,
which are prepared separately for each of the Company’s CGUs to which the individual assets
are allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years. For
longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows
after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered by the most recent
budgets/forecasts, the Company extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using a steady
or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any
case, this growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the market in which
the asset is used.

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are recognised
in the statement of Profit and Loss,

After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its
remaining useful life.

The impairment assessment for all assets is made at each reporting date to determine whether
there is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have
decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable
amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in
the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss
was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed
its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal
is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Foreign Currencies

Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the Company operates (‘the functional currency’).
The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee (INR), which is the Company’s
functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at its functional
currency spol rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. However, for
practical reasons, the Company uses an average rate, if the average approximates the actual rate
at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional
currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date. wherever applicable

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in
profit or loss statement.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchangerates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items




KUJJAL HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED (formerly Kujjal Builders Pyt Ltd)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 2020

measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items
measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in
fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is
recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or loss, respectively).

f) Fair Value Measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either:

*  Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or
* In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability

The principal of the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-finanecial assct takes into account a market participant’s ability
to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to
another market participant that would use the assct in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements
are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows. based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level | — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which (he lowest level mput that is significant to the fair
value measurement is [Inobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis. the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarch,\i hy re-
assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant 1o the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period or each case.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures. the Company has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level
of the fair value hierarchy-as explained above.




KUJJAL HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED (formerly Kujjal Builders Pvt Ltd)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 2020

g)

h)

This note summarizes accounting policy for fair value, Other fair value related disclosures are
given in the relevant notes.

©  Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions (Refer Note 36)

o Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy (Refer Note 36)

o Financial instruments

Revenue Recognition

Revenue ig recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow 1o the
Company and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being
made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking
into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on
behalf of the government. The Company has concluded that it is the principal in all of its
revenue arrangements since it is the primary obligor in all the revenue arrangements as it has
pricing latitude and is also exposed to inventory and credit risks.

The Company applies the revenue recognition criteria to each separately identifiable component
of the sales transaction as set out below:

Revenue from hotel operations:
Revenue from hotel operations comprise sale of rooms, tood and beverages, liquor and wine,

banquet rentals and other services relating 1o hotel operations including telecommunication,
laundry, business centre, health centre ete. Revenue is recognized as and when the services are
rendered and is disclosed net of allowances.

Membership program:
Membership revenue is recognized pro rata over the period of the membership term. loining fee
is recorded as income on salc of membership card.

Sale of goods (Trading goods)
Revenue is recognized when all significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have
passed to the buyer,

Loyalty points program:

The Company is the part of Lalit loyalty points programme, Lalit Connect, Lalit Plus, Lalit
Engage, being operated by its holding Company Bharat Hotel Limited . under which the customer
is allowed to accumulate points when they stay in the various hotels of the Holding Company.
The points can be redeemed for free stay, subject to a minimum number of points being obtained.
The fair value of the points issued is deferred and recognized as revenue when the points are
redeemed.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset
that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalized as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period
in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in




KUJJAL HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED (formerly Kujjal Builders Pt Ltd)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 2020

Debt instruments included within the FVTOC] category are measured initially as well as at each
reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive
income (OCI). However, the interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign
exchange gain or loss are recognised in the P&L. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain
or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to P&L. Interest earned
whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

Debt instrument at FVTPL

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet
the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL,

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets
amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if
doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as
‘accounting mismatch’).

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all
changes recognized in the P&L.

Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments
which are held for trading and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business
combination to which Ind AS103 applies are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity
instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive
income subsequent changes in the fair value. Such election is made on an instrument-by-
instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an cquity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value
changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling
of the amounts from OCI to P&I., even on sale of investment. However, cumulative gain or loss
may be transferred within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPI, category are measured at fair value with all
changes recognized in the P&L.
Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s balance sheet)

financial assets) is primarily

when:
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*  Therights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

* The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has
assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a
third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but
has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered
into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and
rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks
and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to
recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. In that
case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured
al the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109: Financials [nstruments, the Company recognizes impairment
loss allowance on trade receivables based on historically observed default rates. Impairment loss
allowance recognized during the year is charged to Statement of Profit and Loss,

(ii) Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified. at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and
borrowings and payables. net of directly attributable transaction costs,

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings
including bank overdrafis and financial guarantee contracts,

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
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Loans & Borrowings

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing
loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains
and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the EIR amortisation process,

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance
costs in the statement of profit and loss. This category generally applies to borrowings.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an exist ing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts
is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Reclassification of financial instruments

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition,
After initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity
instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a
reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing those
assets. Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent. The Company’s senior
management determines change in the business model as a result of external or internal changes
which are significant to the Company’s operations. Such changes are evident to external parties.
A change in the business model occurs when the Company either begins or ceases to perform an
activity that is significant to its operations. If the Company reclassifies financial assets, it applies
the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the
immediately next reporting period following the change in business model. The Company does
not restate any previously recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or
Interest. CEP
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The following table shows various reclassification and how they are accounted for:

Original Revised classification Accounting treatment ]
classification
Amortised cost FVTPL Fair value is measured at reclassification date.

Difference between previous amortized cost
- and fair value is recognised in P&L

FVTPL Amortised Cost Fair value at reclassification date becomes its
new gross carrying amount. EIR is calculated
based on the new gross carrying amount
Amortised cost | FVTOC] Fair value is measured at reclassification date.
Difference between previous amortised cost
and fair value is recognised in OCI. No change
in EIR due to reclassification

FVTOCI Amortised cost Fair value at reclassification date becomes its
new amortised cost carrying amount. However,
cumulative gain or loss in OCI is adjusted
against fair value, Conscquently, the asset is
measured as if it had always been measured at
amortised cost

FVTPL FVTOCI Fair value at reclassification date becomes its
new carrying amount. No other adjustment is

| required
FVTOCI FVTPL Assets continue to be measured at fair value.

Cumulative gain or loss previously recognised
in OCI is reclassified to P&L at the

reclassification date

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilitics are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance
sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis, to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company
has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company
recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee
renders the related service. The Company has no obligation other than the contribution payable
to the Provided Fund.

The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India. The cost of providing benefits
under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit method.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, excluding amounts included in net
interest on the net defined benefit liability are recognized immediately in the balance sheet with
a corresponding debit or credit to retained carnings through OCI in the period in which they
occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.
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k)

m})

Other Employee Benefits

Compensated absences

Liability in respect of compensated absences becoming due or expected to be availed within one
year from the balance sheet date is recognised on the basis of undiscounted value of estimated
amount required to be paid or estimated value of benefit expected to be availed by the
employees. Liability in respect of compensated absences becoming due or expected to be availed
more than one year afier the balance sheet date is estimated on the basis ol an actuarial valuation
performed by an independent actuary using the projected unit credit method. The Company
presents the entire leave as a current liability in the balance sheet, since it does not have an
unconditional right to defer its settlement for 12 months after the reporting date.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as
aresult of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be madg of the amount of the
obligation. When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example,
under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when
the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the
statement of Profit and Loss net of any reimbursement.

If"the effect of the time value of money is material. provisions are discounted using a current pre-
tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is
used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cos.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable
to equity shareholders (after deducting attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the period. The weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the period is adjusted for events including a bonus issue.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period
attributable to equity sharcholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding
during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Leases

Effective 01 April 2019, the Company adopted Ind AS 116 “Leases™ and applied the standard to
all lease contracts existing on 01 April 2019 using the modified retrospective method,
comparative figures are not restated and the cumulative effect of initially applying the standard is
recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings (or other component of
equity, as appropriate) at the date of initjal application. The weighted average incremental
borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities recognised under Ind AS 116 was 12.5 % for all leases.

The Company as a lessee

The Company’s lease asset classes consist of leases for Land. The Company assesses whether a
contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is. or contains, a lease if the
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contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (i) the contract involves the use of an identified
asset (ii) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through
the period of the lease and (iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

Al the date of commencement of the lease. the Company recognises a right-of-use asset (“ROU™)
and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for
leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these
short-term and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating
expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Certain lease arrangements include the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of
the lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably
certain that they will be exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the
lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the
lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives, They arc subsequently measured at
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease
payments. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not
readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these
leases. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use
asset if the Company changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a
termination option.

The Company as a lessor

The Company’s accounting policy under Ind AS 116 has not been changed from the comparative
period. As a lessor, the Company classifies its leases as either operating or finance leascs. A lease
is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of the underlying asset, and classified as an operating lease if it does not.

When the Company is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for its interests in the head lease and the
sublease separately. The sublease is classified as a finance or operating lease by reference to the
right-of-use asset arising from the head lease.

For finance leases, finance lease receivables are recognised at the commencement of the lease at
the inception date at the present value of the minimum lease payments to be received from and
consequentially the underlying leased asset is derecognised in the Statement of Financial Position
with resulting difference is recognised as selling profit or loss in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
Finance Income on unwinding of lease reccivables are recognised in Other Income in the
Statement of Profit or Loss N




KUJJAL HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED (formerly Kujjal Builders Pvt Ltd)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 2020

n)

Taxes

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount
are those that are enacted or substantively enacted. at the reporting date in the countries where the
Company operates and generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit
or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in
correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where
appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the
reporting date.

Delerred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

*  When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and. at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

* In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of
unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised,
L‘NL'F.?[.’.‘T.:

*  When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss

* In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent
that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced o the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at
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each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future
taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that arc expected to apply in the
year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss
(either in other comprehencive income or in equity). Deferred tax iteme are recognised in
correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same
taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs incurred in bringing
each product to its present location and conditions are accounted for as follows:

Stores and spares inventory comprises cutlery. crockery, linen. other store items food and
beverage, liquor and wine items in hand: Cost is determined on first in first out basis. Circulating
stock of crockery and cutlery issued for more than two months is charged to the profit and loss
account as consumption.

Trading goods: Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories
to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on a first in first out basis.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of the business, less
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Inventory of food and beverage items in hand includes items used for staff cafeteria and is
charged to consumption, net of recoveries, when issued.

Government grants and subsidies

Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and all attached conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for
which it is intended to compensate, are expensed. When the grant relates to an asset, it is
recognised as income in equal amounts over the expected useful life of the related asset.

When the Company receives grants of non-monetary assets, the asset and the grant are recorded
at fair value amounts and released to profit or loss over the expected useful life in a pattern of
consumption of the benefit of the underlying asset i.e. by equal annual installments. When loans
or similar assistance are provided by governments or related institutions, with an interest rate
below the current applicable market rate, the effect of this favourable interest is regarded as a
government grant. The loan or assistance is initially recognised and measured at fair value and
the government grant is measured as the difference between the initial carrying value of the loan
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and the proceeds received. The loan is subsequently measured as per the accounting policy
applicable to financial liabilities.

Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to
make estimates, judgments and assumptions. These estimates, judgments and assumptions affect
the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities. the
disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the period. Application of accounting policies that
require critical accounting estimates involving complex and subjective judgments and the use of
assumptions in these financial statements have been disclosed in note 36. Accounting estimates
could change from period to period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
Appropriate changes in estimates are made as management becomes aware of changes in
circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected in the financial
statements in the period in which changes are made and. if material, their effects are disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-
term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value,

Contingent Liabilities:

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent
liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognised
because it cannot be measured reliably, The Company does not recognise a contingent liability
but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

Measurement of EBITDA

The Company has elected to present earnings before interest, tax, depreciation, amortization and
interest income (EBITDA) as a separate line item on the face of the Statement of Profit and L oss.
The Company measures EBITDA on the basis of profit/ (loss) from continuing operations. In its
measurement, the Company does not include depreciation and amortization expense, interest
income, interest expense and tax expense.

Ko
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KUJJAL HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED
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Note 2 : PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIFMENT

(AN amoamt R in §aes)

Particulars Freehold Plant and Office Furniture and | Computers Vehicles Total
Building Machinery Juig Fixtures

Forthe year ended 31 March 2019
Gross carrying amount
As at01 Apnl 2018 2705477 10,261 86 20.00 1,296 .09 177 26 22.99 38,862.77
Additions for the year - 17.33 074 713 146 - 26,65
Disposals - {22.73) (3.20)) - (0.45) - (26.48)
Gross carrying amount as at 31 March 2013 2705477 10,286.26 17.44 1,303.21 178.26 22.99 38,862.94
Accumulated depreciation
As al 01 April 2018 1.295.83 371882 1485 526,49 164.41 10.16 5,730.37
Depreciation charge for the year 706.34 124254 357 176.84 454 343 213736
Disposals - {13.32) 2.92) 5 (0.43) - (1667}
Closing accumulated depreciation 200247 4,947.94 15.50 703.34 168.52 13.60 7,851.06
Net carrying amount a5 al 31 March 2019 25,052.60 5,338.32 1.95 593.88 9.74 9.39 31,011.89
For the year ended 31 March 2020
Gross camrying amount
Az at0l Apal 2019 2705477 10,286.20 17.44 130321 176.26 2299 38,862.94
Additions for the year - 18.32 111 - - - 19.43
Impaimment Adjustment - - = : ¥ -
Disposals -
Gross carrying amount as at 31 March 2020 27,054.77 10,304.58 18.55 1,303.21 178.26 22.99 JB,SSZ_;{F_
Accumulated depreciation
As atD1 April 2019 2,002.17 4947 94 1550 703.34 168.52 1360 7,851.06
Depreciation charge for the year 70827 1,245 66 1.81 177.43 4497 3.44 2,141.59
Impairment Adjustment - - - - - - -
Disposals -
Closing accumulated depreciation 2,710.44 6,193.60 17.1 B30.77 173.48 17.04 9,992 65
Net carrying amount as at 31 March 2020 24,344.34 4,110.98 1.24 42244 4.77 5.95 28,B89.75
Note 2(i) : Rights of Use Assets

Particulars As at April 01, | Reclassified on Amertisation Balance as at

019 adoption of Ind |Addittion/(Sale)| expense forthe | March,31,202
AS 116 (Refer |during the year year o
Note 41)

Gross carrying amoun 3,687,682 - - 8,687 82 |
Accumddated Depraciation - 38558 - - 385.68
Amortisation sxpanse for the year - - - 96,59 - ﬁ =~
Carrying Value as at March 31,2020 - 8,302.13 - ~8,205.65 | °



KUJJAL HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED

( Earlier known as Kujjal Builders Pvt Ltd )

Notes forming part of standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

Note 3 : INTANGIBLE ASSETS

(All amount Rs in Lacs)

Particulars Software

For the year ended 31 March 2018

Gross carrying amount

As at 01 April 2017 57.43
Additions for the year 5.30
Disposals X
Gross carrying amount as at 31 March 2018 62.73
Accumulated depreciation

As at 01 April 2017 39.31
Depreciation charge for the year 4.33
Disposals “
Closing accumulated depreciation 43.64
Net carrying amount as at 31 March 2018 19.09
For the year ended 31 March 2019

Gross carrying amount

As at 01 April 2018 62.73
Additions for the year 0.90
Disposals =
Gross carrying amount as at 31 March 2019 63.63
Accumulated depreciation

As at 01 April 2018 43.64
Depreciation charge for the year 2.30
Disposals _
Closing accumulated depreciation 45.94
Net carrying amount as at 31 March 2019 17.69
For the year ended 31 March 2020

Gross carrying amount

As at 01 April 2019 63.63
Additions for the year -
Impairment Adjustment -
Disposals -
Gross carrying amount as at 31 March 2020 63.63
Accumulated depreciation

As at 01 April 2019 45.94
Depreciation charge for the year 2.20
Impairment Adjustment -
Disposals -
Closing accumulated depreciation 48.14
Net carrying amount as at 31 March 2020 15.50
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Particulars

As at
Mar 2020 ( Rs)

As at
Mar 2019 ( Rs)

Note 4 : NON CURRENT - ADVANCES

Security Deposits paid

26.15 30.44

TOTAL 26.15 30.44
Note 5 :OTHER NON CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS
Balance with Banks:

- Deposits with remaining maturity of more than 12 months 13.34 13.34

- Margin money deposited against Term Loans from Banks {including interest) 44368 443.68
TOTAL 457.02 457.02
Note 6 :0THER NON CURRENT ASSETS
Capital Advances 100.26 100.26
TOTAL 100.26 100.26
Note 7 :OTHER NON CURRENT TAX ASSETS
TDS Deducted by vendors (gross) 172.74 125.14
TOTAL 172.74 125.14
Note B :INVENTORIES

- Trading Goods 3.60 3.40
- Others
Food and Beverage (excluding liquor and wine) 22.37
Liquor and Wine 63.63
Stares, cutlery, crockery, linen, provisions and others 31.59
TOTAL 120.99

(All amaunt Rs in
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Note 8 : TRADE RECEIVABLE

Secured,considered good

Unsecured.considered good 110.18 197.06
Unsecured, considered Doubtful 15.01 14,39
TOTAL 125.19 211.45
Less : Provision for Doubtful Debts (15.01) {14.39)
TOTAL 110.18 197.06
Note 10: CASH AND BANK EQUIVALENTS
Balances with banks:-

In current accounts 48,28 52.45
Cash an hand 3.01 B.05
TOTAL 51.29 60.50
Note 11: OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS
Accrued Revenue (0.00) 36.69
Interest accrued but not due - on deposits with Banks and cthers/FDR 62.53 28.65
TOTAL 62.53 65.34
Note 12: OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind
-Advances to others considered good 47.42 49.44

47.42 49.44

Prepaid Expenses 30.62 73.89
Balances with Statutory Authcrities 43.80 15.83
Balances with Estate Office, Chandigarh * 455,33 455.33
TOTAL 57717 594.49

“During the year 2013-14, the company had received a demand notice for Rs. 1875 lacs on accounl of delay in

commencement of operations from Estate Office, Chandigarh which was later reduced to Rs 1403 lacs by the Finance
Secretary. As per the orders of the finance Secretary, the company paid Rs. 450 lacs under protest and the remaining
has to be deposited within a year from the date of Partial Occupation Certificate. The company has filed writ petition with
Hon'ble High Court of Punjab & Haryana against the same demand. The Hon'ble Court has passed an order stating that

the further amount shall remain be stayed till the final decision. Management believes that no pro,v‘i’s:.rqn is required.
R iy [

\

(All amount Rs in
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Note 13: SHARE CAPITAL

(A) Authorised, issued, subscribed and paid up share capital and par value per

share

Authorised

%.00,00,000 Equity shares of Rs.10 each 8,000.00 8,000.00

Issued, Subscribed & Paid up

3,00,00,000 Equity shares of Rs.10 each 8,000.00 8,000.00
Deemed Equity Share Capital 40,018.16 39,509.71

Less - Defferad Tax Liability on Deemed Equity (11,133.05) (10,991.80)
TOTAL 36,885.11 36,518.11

(B) Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reparting period
Particulars

Shares Nos. Shares Nos.

No of shares outstanding as at Mar 31, 2020 800 800

No of shares outstanding as at March 31, 2019 800 800
Change during the year - .

( C ) Rights, preference & restrictions attaching to various classes of shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10 per share Each holder of equity shares is

entitled to one vote per share. For the period ended 31st Mar 2020 the amount of per share dividend proposed as

distribution to equity shareholders is Rs.Nil (31.03.2019: Rs. Nil).

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the

Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity

shares held by the shareholders.

{D) Shareholding details of the company

Name of the shareholder Class of shares No of shares held In

aggregate by

holding co./ ultimate

holding co.

Eila Holding Limited (formerly known as Eila Builders & Developers Ltd) Equity 400
PCL Hotels Limited (Formerly Prime Cellular Limited) Equity 400
NOTE 14. RESERVES & SURPLUS- OTHER EQUITY

Retained Earnings

As at 1 April (17,468.40) (15,144.06)
Add: Net profit for the year (2.082.08) (2,327.59)
Add: Other Comprehensive income/(loss) for the year net of Taxes 271 3.25

As at 31 March (19,547.75) (17,468.40)

(All amount Rs in
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KUJJAL HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED
( Earlicr known as Kujjul Builders Pyt Led )
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended Mar 31, 2020

Note 15: LONG TERM BORROWINGS

Term loans

Secured

Axis Bank Limited 9,320.65 9.476.96
Unsecured

From Holding Companies

Bharat Hotels Ltd 4,330.77 3,924.34
From Associate Companies

Eila Holding Limited (formerly Eila Builders & Developers Ltd) 102.57 120.56
Others

Deferred Laibility anising from Discounting of Financial Instruments - 1,505.37
TOTAL 13,753.99 16,027.23

“The above stated lerm loan from banks are secured against the land and buildings, fixed assets and current assets of

the company and the corporate gaurantee of Rs.11650 lacs (31.03.19 - 11650 lacs) given by Bharat Hotels Limited.

Term Loan from Axis Bank Ltd for Rs 9850.36 lacs; Carrying value as per IND AS Rs 9495 .83 lacs (31.03.19 - 10000
lacs; Carrying value as per IND AS Rs 9576.96 lacs),sanctioned amount of Rs.10000 lacs carries interest @ 11.10% per
annum  ( 31.03.18 - 11.5%). (sanction rate ; 1 month MCLR plus 2.75%, payable maonthly). The loan is repayable in 12
years in 35 structured quarterly installments beginning from 31.08.2019. The loan is secured by exclusive charge by way
of mortgage over Hotel land and building at Chandigarh and exclusive charge by way of hypothecation of all the
company's moveable, including movable machinery spares, tools . and accessories (both present and future), firsl
paripassu charge on Company's entire current assets , negative lien on Banglore hotel property (inname of BHL ) on
paripassu basis with Yes Bank undated cheques for the principal amount | shortfall undertaking and corporate guarantee
of Bharal Hotels Limited and by creation of Debt Service Reserve Account ("DSRA") of one guarter interest.

On unsecured Loan from Bharat Hotels Limited interest was paid for April and May , 2017 only @ 11.00 % per annum
and thereafter w.e.f from June,2017 the loan was converted to equity and thus no interest was payable. The loan value of
Rs 4330.77 lacs ( 31.03.2019 -Rs 3924.34 lacs) is the net present value of total amount payable to Bharat Hotel Ltd
JInterest provision at an implicit rate of 10.94% being the weighted average rate for respective period has been made on
the above stated loan on periodical basis.

Unsecured Loan taken from Eila Holding Limited (formerly known as Eila Builders & Developers Limited) carries interest

@ 10.00 % per annum.(31.03.19 -10%) .
Note 15 (i) :LEASE LIABILITIES

Lease Liability (Refer Note 41) 1,505.97 -
TOTAL 1,505.97 -
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Note 16: LONG TERM PROVISIONS

Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity (Refer Note 40) 2555 23.66

TOTAL 25.55 23.66

Note 17: DEFFERED TAX LIABILITY

Deferred Tax Asset

Losses available for offsetting against future taxable income 11,301.48 10,877.56

Re-measurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans (1.04) (1.25)
Impact of expenditure charged to statement of profit and loss in current year/earlier 4.92 6.89

years but allowable for tax purposes on payment basis

Provision for doubtful debts & advances 4.18 4.00

Deferred tax assets 11,309.54 10,887.20

Deferred tax liability

Accelerated depreciation for tax 4 595.58 4 880.11
On Deemed equity portion of interest free loan from Bharat Hotels Ltd 11,133.05 10,991.60
Deferred tax liability 15,828.63 15,871.71
|Net Deferred tax Assel /( Liability ) (4,519.09) (4,984.51)

Mote 18: OTHER NON CURRENT LIABILITIES

Deferred government grant (Refer Note 36) 21145 275.97

TOTAL 211.45 275.97

Note 19 : SHORT TERM BORROWINGS

Secured

Overdraft facilities from Axis Bank Ltd 229 83 44219
Unsecured

From Associate Companies

Eila Holding Limited (formerly Eila Builders & Developers Lid) 1.55 13.54

TOTAL 231.38 455.73

Overdrafl facilities from Axis Bank Ltd of Rs 229.83 lacs ( 31.03.2019 . Rs 442.19 lacs) carries interest @ 12.50%
(sanction rate ; 3 months MCLR plus 3.80%, payable monthly} The loan is secured by exclusive charge by way of
mortgage over Hotel land and building at Chandigarh and exclusive charge by way of hypothecation of all the company's
maveable, including movable machinery ,spares, tools . and accessories (both present and future), first paripassu charge
on Company's entire current assets , negative lien on Banglore hotel property (inname of BHL ) on paripassu basis with
Yes Bank ,undated cheques for the principal amount , shortfall undertaking and corporate guarani@e"df 'Bi_'taral Hotels
Limited and by creation of Debl Service Reserve Account ("DSRAT) of one quarter interest. /' L a
¥ W/
/- {
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KUJJAL HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED
( Earlier known as Kujjal Builders Pve Lud )

Naotes to the financial statements for the year ended Mar 31, 2020

Mote 20: TRADE PAYABLES

(All amount Rs in

TRADE PAYABLES

_total outstanding due of creditors other than micro, small & medium enterprises 269.90 42271
-total outstanding due of creditors -micro, small & medium enterprises 75.78 9.45
TOTAL 345.68 432.16
Note 21: OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Current maturities of long term barrawings 175.18 100,00
Interest acerued but not due on borrowings 92.86 97.67
Sundry Deposits 19.80 16.80
Payables on purchase of Fixed Assets 1.3 1.3
Retention Payable 22.38 22.38
Other Payables

Employes related liabilities 66.73 78.97
Outstanding Dues of Creditors 268.65 244 09
TOTAL 646.91 561.22
Note 22: SHORT TERM PROVISIONS

Provision for employee benefits

Gratuity ( Refer Note 40) 5.56 2.05
Leave Encashment 19.83 25.40
TOTAL 25.39 27.45
Note 23: OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Deferred Revenue of membership programmes 43 40 45 06
Advances receivad from cuslomers 59.90 53.91
Statutory dues payable

TDS/ TCS payable 7.39 9.47
GST Payable 548 61.67
VAT payable 1.96 227
PF Payable 6.58 6.84
ESI Payable 0.84 1.60
Others

Deferred Government grant 64.52 654,52
TOTAL 190.07 245.34




KUJJAL HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended Mar 31, 2020

For the Yr Ended  For the Yr Ended

Particulars
31 Mar'2020 31 Mar'2019

Note 24: REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
Sale of products and services

- Room and apartment 1,992.90 1,931.73
- Food and beverage (excluding liquor and wine) 1,878.98 1,994.76
- Liguor and wine 372.58 424 16
- Banguet and Equipment rentals 122.12 91.34
- Other Services 81.61 86.44
- Telephone and telex 314 3.82
- Membership programme revenue 69.95 71.28
- Traded goods 1.92 243
Other Operating Revenues

- Commission income 14.26 18.47

- Rent (Shops , Mobile Phone Towers) 23.92 20.07
TOTAL 4,561.38 4,644.50
Note 25: OTHER INCOME
Excess pravision/ credit balances written back - 30.38
Government grant income- (Refer Note 36) 64.52 684.52
Miscellaneous income 21.05 10.33
TOTAL 85.57 105.24

Note 26 : INTEREST INCOME

Others

- bank deposits
TOTAL

31.83

31.83

(Al amount Rs in



(Al amount Rs in

KUJJAL T IOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED
( Earlier known as Kujjal Builders Pyt Led )
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended Mar 31, 2020
Note 27: COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED

Consumption of food and beverages (excluding liquor & wine)
Inventory at the beginning of the year 22.37 17.80
Add: Purchases 503.04 557.12
Less: Inventory at the end of the year (23.66) (22.37)
Total 501.75 552.55
Consumption of liquor and wine
Inventory at the beginning of the year 63.63 60.06
Add Purchases 82.36 101.47
Less. Inventory at the end of the year (49.73) (63.63)
Total 96.26 97.60
Grand Total 598.01 650.15
Note 28 : PURCHASE OF STOCK IN TRADE
Purchases during the year 1.16 1.07
TOTAL 1.16 1.07
Note 29 :CHANGES IN INVENTORIES
[inventory at the beginning of the year
AUM SHOP 3.40 3.81
Total 3.40 3.81
|inventory at the end of the period
AUM SHOP 360 3.40
Total 3.60 3.40
Met Impact of Change in Inventory (0.20) 0.41




KUJJAL HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED
( Earlier known as Kujjal Builders Pvt Ltd )

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended Mar 31, 2020

Note 30: EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE

Salaries, wages and allowances 667.25 778.01
Bonus 35.45 35.45
Contribution ta provident fund 41.66 41.98
Contribution to ESIC 12.27 14.83
Gratuity expenses 8.76 7.46
Leave compensation expenses (1.26) 9.57
Staft welfare expenses 1.77 12.40
Staff recruitment and training 0.56 0.1
TOTAL 776.46 899.81
Note 31: OTHER EXPENSES

Consumplion of stores, cutlery, crackery, linen, provisions and others 166.89 160.79
Power and fuel 462.11 565.01
Banquet and decaration expenses 52.30 97.32
Membership programime expenses 8.65 14.01
Repair and maintenance

*Buildings 53.12 36.18
*Plant and machinery 11827 104 78
*Others 16.84 10.04
Royalty and marketing fees 226.88 231.99
Rates and taxes 80.28 100.82
Insurance 25.85 15.45
Communication costs 2368 33.00
Printing and stationery 20.62 24.54
Travelling and conveyance 22.94 40.22
Advertisement and business promotion 82.14 146.03
Commission -other than sole selling agent 139.65 124.74
Security and cleaning expensas 223.43 24774
Membership and subscriptions 24.00 20.20
Professional fees 33.36 25.20
Legal charges 7.22 19.46
Freight and cartage 12.28 12.43
Advances written off 2.51 -
Exchange differences (net) 1.23 0.05
Loss on salef discard of property, plant and equipment (net} - 9.81
Bad Debts 9.18
Provision for doubtful debts 9.50
Bank charges 29.61
Payment to auditors 6.75
Directors fees and commission =
Miscellaneous expenses 1.86
TOTAL 2,096.82

(All amount Rs in



KUJJAL HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED
( Earlier known as Kujjal Builders Pvt Lid )

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended Mar 31, 2020

Note 32: FINANCE COST

(Al amount Rs in

Interest on loans from Bank 1,175.11 1,181.27
Bank charges 21.10 14.73
Intereat on Loan from Ralated Parties

- on loan from Holding co 430.99 364.98
- on loan from Associate co 11.68 156.31
Unwinding of finance cost from financial instruments at amortised cost 68.51 68.98
Finance charges payable under finance leases 188.10 188.09
Interest on defined benefit Obligation of Gratuty 1.78 162
TOTAL 1,897.27 1,975.98
Mote 33: DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSE

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 2,238.17 2,233.73
Amortisation of intangible assets 2.20 2.30
TOTAL 2,240.37 2,236.03




KUJJAL HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED
{ Earlier known as Kujjal Builders Pyt Lid )
Nates to the financial statements for the year ended Mar 31, 2020

Note- 34- New standard adopted - Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Indian Accounting Standard 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (‘Ind AS 115%), establishes a framework for determining whether, how much
and when revenue is recognised and requires disclosures about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenues and cash flows arising from

customer contracts. Under Ind AS 115, revenue is recognised through a 5-step approach
(i) |dentify the contract{s) with customer,

(i) Identify separate performance obligations in the contract;

(iii} Determine the transaction price;

(iv) Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations, and

(v) Recognise revenue when a performance obligation is satisfied

The Company has adopted

the standard on 1 April 2018 using modified retrospective approach with a cumulative calch-up adjustment made in

retained eamnings at the beginning of the current financial year, ie, 1 April 2018 as if the standard had always been in effect. The adoption of the new

standard did not result in any adjustments to the Company’s revenue or net income

Disaggregation of revenue
Revenue arises mainly from hote| operations

For the Year ended

Description For the Year ended
31 Mar 2020 31 Mar 2019

(A) Sale of services and product
Revenue from hospitality services 4.451.32 453224
Revenue from membership programme 639,95 71.28
Revenue from sale of traded goods 192 243
(B) Other ancillary revenue
Rent & Commission 38.18 38.53

4,561.37 4,644.47

* The Company operales single business segment i.e. operation of haotels
Contract balances

The following tables present information about trade receivables, contract assets, and contract liabilities:

For the Year ended

For the Year ended

31 Mar 2020 31 Mar 2019
Trade receivables (refer note 9) 11018 197.06
Contract assets (Unbilled revenue) (refer note 11) (0.00) 36.69
Contract liabilities
Advance from customers (refer note 23) 59 90 5391
4340 4506

Delerred revenue (refer note 23)

A trade receivable is recorded when the Company has issued an invoice and has an unconditional right to receive payment In respect of revenues

from hospitality services, the invoice is typically issued as the related performance obligations are satisfied.




KUJJAL HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED
{ Earlicr known as Kujjal Builders Pyvi Lad )
Nates to the financial statements for the year ended Mar 31, 2020
Qontract assets
An enlity's nght to consideration in exchange for goods or services that the entity has transferred to a customer when that right is conditioned on
something other than the passage of time. The table does not include amounts which were received and recognised as revenue in the year,

For the Year ended For the Year ended
31 Mar 2020 31 Mar 2019
Opening balance 386 689 3447
Increase in unbilled revenue during the year 36.69
Recognised as revenue 36.69 34.47
Closing balance - 36,69
Current - 36 A9
Non current = =
Total - 36.69

Contract liabilities
An entity’s obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the entity has received consideration (or the amount is due) from the

customer.

Advance from customers
Advance from customer is recognised when payment is received before the related performance obligation is satisfied. The table does not include

amounts which were received and recognised as revenue in the year

For the Year ended For the Year ended
31 Mar 2020 31 Mar 2019

Opening balance 5301 0R 81
Increase during the year 53,53 53.91
Recognised as revenue 5301 95.83
Closing balance 59.53 53.91
Current 5953 53.91
Non current =
Total 59.53 53.91

Deferred revenue
Deferred revenue is recognised when payment is received before the related pedormance obligation is satisfied. The main categories of deferred
revenue relates o the membership programme. The table does not include amounts which were received and recognised as revenue in the year.

For the Year ended For the Year ended
31 Mar 2020 31 Mar 2019

Opening balance 45.08 3533
Increase in deferred revenue during the year 43.41 4506
Recognised as revenue 45.06 35.33
Closing balance 43.41 45.08
Current 43 a1 45 06
Nan current 3
Total 43.41 45.06

C Significant changes in contract assets and liabilities
There has been no significant changes in contact assels/contract liabilities during the year




Kujjal Hotels Private Limited
(Formerly Kujjal Builders Pvt Ltd)

35. Related Party Disclosures

i) Joint Venture Investors 1.
2.
ii) Holding Company: 1.

jiii) Associates:

@t b oo

Eila Holding Limited (formerly Eila Builders & Developers Ltd.)
PCL Hotels Limited (Formerly Prime Cellular Limited)

Bharat Hotels Limited

Prima Hospitality Pvt Ltd (formerly Prima Buildwell Private Limited)
Deeksha Holding Limited

Deeksha Human Resource Initiatives Limited

Premium Farm Fresh Produce Limited

iv) Enterprise owned or significantly influenced by key

management personnel or their relatives.

1.
2.
3.
4

v) Key Management Personnel:

S s 0END MR LN

- =

Cargo Motors Private Limited

Rohan Motors Limited

Subros Limited

Kronokare Cosmetics Private Limited ( till 10.05.2018)

Mr.V.K.Chanana - Managing Director- passed away on 03.07.2020
Mr Rocky Kalra - Director

Mr Kirat Singh - Independent Director

Ms Poonam Tyagi - Director resigned on 15.04. 19
Mr Ravinder Suri - Independent Director

Mr Rakesh Mitra - Director

Mr Vivek Shukla - Director

Mr Rajiv Chopra - Director appointed on 21.03.2020
Mr Sanjay Malik - CFO

Ms. Manpreet Kaur - CS- Resigned on 21.08.19
Ms. Nupur Gupta - CS -Appointed on 10.02.20

vi) Transaction with the above parties are in the ordinary course of business.

vii) The holding company has given following Corporate Guarantee on behalf of the Company:-

Particulars 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Rs In Lacs
Corporate Guarantee given to banks against loans taken 11,650 11,650

by the Company.




Note 35
Kujjal Hotels Private Limited

(Formerly Kujjal Builders Pvt Ltd)

Related Party Transactions:

{Rupees in Lacs)

Holding/JV Company

Associated Company

Entities where KMP

Key management

Total

and their relatives personnel
have significant
Particulars influence
For the year ended For the year ended For the year ended For the year ended For the year ended
31 Mar'20 | 31 Mar'19 | 31 Mar'20 | 31 Mar'19 | 31 Mar'20 | 31 Mar'19| 31 Mar'20 | 31 Mar'19 | 31 Mar20 | 31 Mar'19
LOANS RECEIVED
Bharat Hotels Limiled ( Deemed Holding aver| seises } iRl 301592
Co) )
LOANS REPAID -
Bharal Hotels Limiled { Deeamed Holding 208.03 205 00 208.03 205.00
Ca) )
PCL Hotels Limited (Formerly Prime . 2729 07 ; . 272907
Cellular Limited)
Eila Holding Limited (formerly Eila R R av.s0 20.92
40, 0.92 ® 5

Builders & Developers Lid.) = 2
Frima Hospitality P‘\.rt Ltd (farmerly Prima 0.48 . . i} 048
Buildwell Private Linuted)
CONULTANCY AND BRAND MGT FEE
ghTrat Hotels Limited { Deemed Holding — 268.18 . 250,98 268.18

o
INTEREST EXPENSE/(INCOME)
2harat Hotels Limited { Deemed Holding 430.99 a64.68 . 430,98 164.98

a)
PCL Hotels Limited (Formerly Prime . 145.59 ) ; 145 58
Cellular Limited) )
Eila Holding Limited (formerly Eila 1072 S . . 1168 10.72
Builders & Developers Lid ) 1188 g
PURCHASE/(SALE) OF
GOODSISERVICES
Kronokare Cosmetics Pyt Ltd - - 2.21 - - 2.21
Subros Limited (1.38) (1.98) - {1.38) (1.98)
EXPENDITURE REIMBURSED
Bharat Hotels Limited ( Deemed Holding 16.13 2913 16.13 20.93
Co)




Kujjal Hotels Private Limited

(Formerly Kujjal Builders Pvt Ltd)

Related Party Transactions:

(Rupees in Lacs)

Holding/JV Company

Associated Company

Entities where KMP
and their relatives
have significant

Key management
personnel

Total

Particulars influence
For the year ended For the year ended For the year ended For the year ended For the year ended
31 Mar'20 ] 31 Mar19 | 31 Mar'20 | 31 Mar'19 | 31 Mar'20 |31 Mar'13| 31 Mar'20 l 31 Mar'19 | 31 Mar'20 I 31 Mar'19
Holding/JV Company | Associated Company Entities where KMP Key management Total
and their relatives personnel
have significant
Particulars influence
For the year ended For the year ended For the year ended For the year ended For the year ended
31 Mar'20 | 31 Mar19 | 31 Mar20 | 31 Mar19 | 31 Marz0 |31 Mar19| 31 Mar20 | 31 Mar19 | 31 Mar20 | 31 Mar'13
BALANCE AT YEAR END
(PAYABLE)/RECEIVABLE
g!g)arat Hotels Limited { Deemed Holding (44,348 93)| (43,434 05) i (44.348.92)| (43,434 05)
Eilla Holding Limited (formerly Eila {10412} (134.11)
Builders & Developers Lid ) : ) (104.12) (124.1%)
Kronokare Cosmetics Pwi. Lid - - - - (0.21) - - (0.21)
Subros Limited - - - 021 0.65 - - 0.21 0.65
Cargo Motors Private Limited - - - 1.30 130 - - 1.30 1.30
Rohan Motors Limited - - 0.10 0.10 - = 0.10 0.10
OTHERS
Corporate Guarantee outstanding - ] i
Bharat Hotels Limited 11,650.00 | 11,650.00 - 11.650.00 | 11,650.00
Share Capital - PCL Hotels Limited
(Formerly Prime Cellular Limited) 4,000 00 4,000.00 - - - - - 4,000.00 4,000.00
Share Capital -Eila Holding Limited
- i 4,000, - - - 4,000.00 4 7
(formerly Eila Builders & Developers Ltd ) 4,000.00 i o ’ :090:00
Sitting fee paid to Independent Director
Mr Kirat Singh 0.40 0.40
Sitting fee paid 1o Independent Director }
Mr Ravinder Suri 0D 0.40
Remuneration paid- Sanjay Malik, CFO
(wef12.032019) 16 45 077 16.45 077
Remuneration paid- Manpreet Kaur, CS
(till 21.08.2019) 163 550 16 550
Remuneration paid- Nupur Gupta, CS
(w.e.f10.02.2020) 069 0.69




(All amount Rs in Lacs)

KUJJAL HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED
( Earlier known as Kujjal Builders Pyt Ltd )
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended Mar 31, 2020

36. Government Grant

37

Particulars 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-18

At the beginning of the year 34048 405.00

Received during the year

Released to the statement of profit and loss 64.52 64.52

At the end of the year 275.97 340.48

Current 64.52 84.52

Non-current 211,45 275,96
275.97 340.48

Government grants have been received for the purchase of certain items of property, plant & equipment. The Company is
required to undertake export of services. There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies attached to these grants.

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in
outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.
Judgements

In the process of applying the Company's accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, which have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Contingencies and commitments

In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigation , taxation and other claims against the
Company . A tax provision is recognised when the Company has a present cbligation as aresult of a past event , it is probable
that the Company will be required to settle that obligation. Where it is managemnt's assessment that the outcome cannot be
reliably quantified or is uncertain the claims are disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the likelihood of an adverse outcome
is remote. Such liabilities are disclosed in the notes but are not pravided for in the fianancial statements .

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year,
are described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial
statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due
to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the
assumptions when they occur.

Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment benefits and the present value of the gratuity
obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may
differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases
and mortality rates. Due o the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is
highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriale discount rate for plans operated in
India, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of the
post-employment benefit abligation.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for the specific countries. Those mortality tables tend to
change only at interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and gratwiy mcreases are based an
expecled future inflation rates. Further details about gratuity obligations are given in Note 4&!
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{All amount Rs in Lacs)

KUJJAL HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED
{ Earlier known as Kujjal Builders Pyt Lul )
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended Mar 31, 2020

Commitments and contingencies

i. Capital commitments
Commitments relating to estimated amount of completion of Property, Plant & Equipment are as follows

Particulars 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and NIL NIL
not provided for
ii. Contingent liabilities
Particulars 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Export commitment against EPCG licenses obtained 5,239.24 5,239.34
Duty payable if export commitment not met 678.97 678.97
Claims against the company not acknowledged as debt
- Estate Office , Chandigarh for delay in commencemnt of operations * 1,403.00 1,403.00
- Municipal Corporateion , Chandigarh * 50.08 59.08
- District Court , Chandigarh * 50.00 50.00
- Service tax demand * 135.49 135,49

* the company has obtained the EPCG License to save Custom duty (net of licences surrendered) of Rs.823.29 lacs
corresponding obligation imposed was Rs.6310.06 lacs

* During the year 2013-2014, the company had received a demand notice for Rs.1875 lacs on account of delay in
commencement of operations from Estate Office, Chandigarh which was later reduced to Rs.1403 lacs by the Finance
Secretary, As per the orders of the finance Secretary, the company paid Rs.450 Lacs under protest and the remaining has to
be deposited within a year from the date of Partial Occupation Certificate. The company had now filed writ petition with
Hon'ble High Court of Punjab & Haryana against the same demand. The Hon'ble Court has passed an order stating that the
further amount shall remain be stayed till the final decision. Management believes that no provision is required.

* During the year the Company received demand notice from Chandigarh Municipal Corporation for recovery of Property tax
for Rs.59.08 lacs pertaining to period from 2005-2006 to 2017-2018. The amount includes principal and interest. The
Company had protested the said demand on the pretext that the entire IT Park, where the Hotel is located at Chandigarh was
exempted from Property tax through Notification for development of IT Park. The contention of authority is that the exemption
was applicable to IT Companies only and not other commercial institutions. As on date of signing the matter is under
consideration with authority. The managament believes that they have a strong case and no provision is required.

* A suit has been filed against the Hotel and its directors/officers, claiming damages of Rs.50 lakhs by the parents of a guest
who had died in the hotel premises. The damages have been claimed for alleged negligence of the hotel and its officers. The
Company has contested the claim at Punjab and Haryana High Court and the suit is at its initial stage. The management
believes that they have a strong case and no provision is required.

* During the year a show cause notice dated 24.10.2018 has been received by Company from Service tax wherein demand of
Rs 135.49 lacs has been issued under section 6C of Finance Act, 1994 on account of additional service tax towards wrong
abatement applied during the FY 2013-14 to FY 2016-17. The Company has filed the reply stating that their are 3 different
services being provided by Hotel i.e Room . Restaurant and Mandap Keeper and accordingly 3 different abatement rates
were applicable . As per the managemnt the Company has rightly taken these abatements and are as per the prescribed

provisions of law . The adjudication is yet to start. i!

\
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40.

KUJJAL HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED
( Earlier known as Kujjal Builders Pyt Lud )

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended Mar 31, 2020

{All amount Rs in Lacs)

iii. Guarantees

Particulars 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Customs Department for Export obligation * 862.20 B62.20
Service Tax Department 0.50 0.50

* the company has obtained the EPCG License to save Custom duty (net of licences surrendered) of Rs.823.29 lacs
corresponding obligation imposed was Rs.6310.06 lacs. The bank guarantees provided by Axis bank Ltd are against the

same only.
EARNING PER SHARE (EPS)

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company by the

weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted

average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

Particulars 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Basic Earnings per share

Profit attributable to equity share holders of Company for basic earnings (2,082) (2,328)
VWeighted average number of Equity shares for basic EPS 800 800
EPS (2.60) (2.91)
Diluted Earnings per share

Profit attributable to equity share holders of Company for diluted earnings (2,082) (2,328)
Weighted average number of Equity shares for basic EPS 800 800
EPS (2.60) (2.91)
Gratuity and other post-employment benefit plans

Particulars - 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Gratuity Plan 31.11 25.71
Total 31:41 2571

The Company has an unfunded defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more or
service gets a gratuity on separation equal to 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of continuous

service or part thereof in excess of six maonths.

Changes in the defined benefit obligation as at 31 March 2028

Description 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-18
Present value of defined benefit obligation as at start of the year 25.71 23.91
Current service cost 8.76 7.46
Net Interest cost 1.78 1.62
Total amount recognsied in profit and loss account 10.54 9.09
Remeasurements = =
Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from changes in demographic (0.91) 347 |
Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from changes in financial assumptions 0.97 (4.57)
Experience adjustments (3.81) (3.39)
Total amount recognsied in other comprehensive income (3.75) (4.50)
Benefits paid (1.39) (2.79)
Liabilities assumed on Acquisition/ (Settled on Divestiture) = = 5
Present value of defined benefit obligation as at the end of the year Fany 25.71




KUJJAL HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED
( Earlicr known as Kujjal Builders Pyt Led )

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended Mar 31, 2020

Amount recognised in the statement of profit and loss is as under:

(All amount Rs in Lacs)

Description 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

Current service cost 8.76 7.46

Net Interest cost 1.78 1.62

Benefits paid (1.39) {2.79)

Liabilities assumed on Acquisition/ (Settled on Divestiture) - -
Amount recognised in the statement of profit and loss 9.16 6.29
Amount recognised in Other Comprehengive Income is as under: -

Description 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Opening amount recognized in OCI outside profit and loss account (4.50) 0.91
Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from changes in demographic (0.91) 3.47
Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from changes in financial assumptions 0.97 (4.57)

Experience adjustments (3.81) (3.39)
Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (3.75) (4.50)
The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity for the Company's
plans are shown below:

Description 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Discount rate 5.55% 7.20%
Future salary increase 5.00% 6.00%
Sensitivity analysis for gratuity liability
Description 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

Impact of the change in discount rate
Present value of obligation at the end of the year
a) Impact due to increase of 0.5% 30.35 24.68
b) Impact due to decrease of 0.5% 31.91 26.80

Impact of the change in salary increase - _ -
Present value of obligation at the end of the year - -

a) Impact due to increase of 0.5% 31.9 26.81
b) Impact due to decrease of 0.5% 30.34 24.67

The sensitivity analysis above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit
obligation as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occuring at the reporting period.

The following payments are expected contributions to the defined benefit plan in future years:

Description 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

Year 1 5.56 2.05
Year 2 5.53 2.30
Year 3 5.93 2.62
Year 4 3.84 429
Year 5 3.05 2.41
Year 6 & above 18.97 39.60

The weighted average duration for the payment of these cash flows is 5.02 Years ( Ljf,.ﬂ';'zﬂ“earsl\_
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(Al amount Rs in Lacs)

KUJJAL HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED
( Earlier known as Kujjal Builders Pyt Lud )
Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended Mar 31, 2020

41. (a) Right of use asset

Particulars 31-Mar-20

As at 1 April 2019 -
Adjustment on transition to Ind AS 116 'Leases’ 8,302.13
Less: Amortisation expense for the year 96.59
As at 31 March 2020 8,205.55

(b) Lease liabilities

Particulars 31-Mar-20
Non-current 1,505.97
Current -
TOTAL 1,505.97

The lease liabilities are secured by the related assets/land taken on lease

{c) The following are amounts recognised in profit or loss with respect to leasing arrangements:

Particulars 31-Mar-20
Amortisation expense on right-of-use asselts 96.59
Interest expense on lease liabilities 188.10

Expense relating to variable lease payments not included in lease liabilities -

Expense relating to leases of low-value asset and shorl-term leases -

Total cash outflow in respect of leases 284.69
Total lease payments considered for accounting of IND AS 116 is Rs 187.50 Lacs

(d) Details about arrangement entered as a lessor

Operating Lease
The Company gives shops located at its hotel and other space on operating lease arrangements. These leases are generally
cancellable in nalure and may generally be terminated by either party by serving notice. The future minimum lease payments
recoverable by the company are as under

Particulars 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

(a) Not later than one year 16.80 18.00
(b) Later than one year and not later than five years 76.80 79.20
(c) Later than five years 120.00 108.00

Finance Lease

The Company had not entered into any sub licensing agreements which are based on identical terms vis a vis its land lease
arrangement Therefore nothing is accounted for as finance leases on adoption ol Ind AS 116 with respect to corresponding right-of-

use asset

(e) Disclosure under Ind AS 17 for the year ended 31 March 2019:
Operating leases - Land taken on lease
Minimum lease payments in relation to non- cancellable operaling leases are payable as follows:

Particulars 31-Mar-19

(a) Not laler than one year 187.50
(b) Later than one year and not later than five years 750.00
(c) Later than five years 15,728.91
TOTAL 16,666.41

Total lease payments recognised in the stalement of profit and loss is Rs 188.09 lacs




(ANl amount Rs in Lacs)

KUJJAL HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED
{ Earlier known as Kujjal Builders Pyt Lad )
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended Mar 31, 2020

(f) Adoption of Ind AS 116 Leases

Effective 1 April 2019, the Company has adopted Ind AS 116 “Leases” and applied the standard to all lease contracts existing on 1
April 2019, except for those identified as having a remaining lease term of less than 12 months from the date of initial application.
using the modified retrospective approach, comparative figures are not restated and the cumulative effect of initially applying the
standard is recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings (or other component of equity, as appropriate)
at the date of initial application. Comparatives as at and for the year ended 31 March 2019 have not been retrospectively adjusted
and therefore will continue to be reported under the accounting policies included as part of the financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2019

On transition to Ind AS 116 the average incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities recognised under Ind AS 116 was
12.50 % for all leases

In applying Ind-AS 116 for the first time, the Company has used the following practical expedients permitted by the standard:

(i) the use of a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with reasonably similar characteristics

(i) reliance on previous assessments on whether leases are onerous and thereby no impairment review of right-of-use assets has
been performed on the 1 April 2019 (transition date to Ind AS 116)

(iii} the accounting for operating leases with a remaining lease term of less than 12 months as at 1 April 2019 as short-term leases.

(iv) the exclusion of initial direct costs for the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of initial application, and

(v) the use of hindsight in determining the lease term where the contract contains options 1o extend or terminate the lease

The Company has also elected not to reassess whether a contract is, or contains a lease at the date of initial application. Instead,
for contracts entered into before the transition date the Company relied on its assessment made applying Ind-AS 17 and Appendix C
of Ind-AS 17 determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease.

The following is a reconciliation of total operating lease commitments at 31 March 2019 (as disclosed in
the financial statements to 31 March 2019) to the lease liabilities recognised as at 1 April 2019:

Particulars As at 1st Apr 2019
Total operating lease commitments disclosed at 31 March 2019 (refer sub point

i - 16.666.41
e" above)

Total lease obligation as on 1 April 2019 16,666.41
Discounted using incremental borrowing rate 15,160.43
Total lease liabilities recognised under Ind AS 116 at 1 April 2019 1,505.97

‘including reasonably certain extension options taken

(g) Lease liahilities

() The following is the movement in lease liabilities during the year ended 31 March 2020.

As at 1st Apr 2019
Particulars

Balance as of 1 April 2019 -
Reclassified on account of adoption of Ind AS 118 1,505.37

Finance cost accrued during the year 188.10
Paymenl of Lease liabilities 187.50
Balance as of 31 March 2020 1,505.97

(i) The table below provides details regarding the cantractual maturities of lease liabilities as at
31 March 2020 on an undiscounted basis:

Particulars 31-Mar-20

(a) Not later than one year - - - 187.50
(b) Later than one year and not later than five years 750.00
(c) Later than five years 15541.41
TOTAL 16,478.91

The Company does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities as the current assets are sufficient to meet
the obligations related to lease liabilities as and when they fall due.
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42, Fair Value Measurements

(a) Financial instruments by category

{All amount Rs in Lacs)

Particulars 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Financial Assets measured at amortised cost
Trade Receivables 110.18 197.06
Loans:
Security Deposit 26.15 30.44
Cash and Cash Equivalents 51.29 60.50
Interest accrued on deposits with Banks and others/FDR 62.53 28.65
Held as margin money 457.02 457.02
Total Financial Assets 70717 773.67
Financial Liabilities measured at amortised cost
Borrowings-Non Current 13,753.99 15,027.23
Borrowings- Current 231.38 455.73
Trade Payables 345.68 432.16
Outstanding Dues of Creditors 268.65 244.09
Security Deposits 19.80 16.80
Current maturties of long term borrowings 175.18 100.00
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 92.86 97.67
Employee related liabilities 66.73 78.97
Payables on purchase of Fixed Assets 1.31 1.31
Retention Payable 22.38 22.38
Total Financial Liabilities 14,977.95 16,476.33

(b) Fair value hierarchy

The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade payables, bank overdrafts, Interest
accured on bank deposits with banks, other current assets and other current liabilities approximates their carrying amounts
largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of loans, security deposits, borrowings and other financial assets and liabilities are considered to be the same
as their fair values, as there is an immaterial change in the lending rates.

Receivables/loans are evaluated by the Company based on parameters such as interest rates, individual crediworthiness of
the customer and the risk characteristics. Based on the evaluation, allowances are taken into account for the credit losses of

these receivables.

Fair value of Level 3 items

Asisels alnd Liabilities U\!hlch are measured at Amortised Cost for 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
which fair Values are disclosed

Total Financial Assets 707.17 773.67
Financial Liabilities 14,977.95 16,476.33
Borrowings 14,160.55 15,582.85
Security deposits received 19.80 16.80
Total Financial Liabilities ~~ 14.180.35 15,588.75
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43. Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company's principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose of
these financial liabilities is to finance the Company's operations and to support its operations. The Company's financial assets
include loans, trade and other receivables, and cash & cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk, The company's senior managemenl oversees lhe
management of these risks, The company's senior management is supported by a financial risk committee that advises on
financial ricke and the appropriate financial risk governance framework for the Company. This financial risk committea
provides assurance to the Company's senior management that the Company's financial risk activities are governed by
appropriate policies and procedure and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the
Company's policies and risk objectives. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each risk, which are
summarised as below:

{A) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading
to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its
financing activites, including loans to related parties, deposits with banks and financial institutions, foreign exchange
transactions and other financial instruments.

(a) Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by each business location subject to the Company's established policy, procedures and
control relating to customer credit risk management. Credit quality of a customer is assessed and individual credit limits are
defined in accordance with the assessment both in terms of number of days and amount.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients. In addtion, a large number
of minor receivables are grouped into homogenous groups andd assessed for impairment collectively. The maximum
exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets disclosed in Note no.9. The
Company does not hold any collateral as security.

(b) Financial instruments and cash depaosits

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company's treasury department in
accordance with the Company's policy. Investment of surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties and within
credit limits assigned to each counterparty. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of
each class of financial assets disclosed in Note no.10.

Gross Carrying amount of trade receivables:

Ageing 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Not due
0-60 days past due 54.05 132.36
61-120 days past due 22.37 17.81
121-180 days past due 10.26 16.27
180-365 days past due 15.96 19.83
365-730 days past due 12.24 11.18
more than 730 days 10.31 13.98
Carrying amount of trade receivables 125.19 211.45
Provision for doubtful debts
| Ageing 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
365-730 days past due - 7.20
more than 730 days 15.01 7.18
_Carrying amount of trade receivables 15.01 | 14.39
Reconciliation of provision for doubtful debts - Trade receivables
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Provision on 1st day of year 14.39 8.61
Addition during the year 8.38 9.50
Reversal during the year (7.76) (3.72)
Utilised during the year - -
Provision as on last day of the year 15.01 14.39
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(B) Liquidity risk

(All amount Rs in Lacs)

The Company monitors its risk of a shortage of funds by estimating the future cash flows. The Company's objective is to
maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank overdrafts, cash credit facilities and
bank loans. The Company assessad the concentration of risk with respect to refinancing its debt and concluded it to be low.
The Company has access to a sufficient variety of sources of funding and debt maturity within 12 months can be rolled over
with existing lenders. The Company had access to the following undrawn borrowing facilities at the end of the reporting

periods -

Particulars

31-Mar-20

31-Mar-18

Floating rate

A. Expiring within one year (bank overdraft and other facilities)

- Secured

- Overdraft facilities

370.17

157.81

B. Expiring beyond one year (bank loans)

Total

370.17

157.81

Maturities of financial liabilities

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company's financial liabilities based on contractual

undiscounted payments -

Contractual maturities of Borrowings 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Less than 3 months 695.69 420.02
3 months to & months 451.31 438.17
6 months to 1 year 1,231.54 1,437.21
Between 1 and 2 years 1,984.59 1,789.88
Between 2 and 5 years 7,321.02 7,039.81
More than 5 years 13,449.53 14,888.27
Total non-derivative liabilities 25,133 69 26.014.36
Contractual maturities of Finance Lease Obligation 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Less than 3 months 46.88 46.88
3 months to & months 46.88 46.88
6 months to 1 year 93.75 93.75
Between 1 and 2 years 187.50 187.50
Between 2 and 5 years 562.50 562.50
More than 5 years 15,541.41 15,728.91
Total non-derivative liabilities 16,478.91 16,666.41
‘\a | ﬂ i
\ /)
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(All amount Rs in Lacs)

Contractual maturities of Trade Payables

31-Mar-20

31-Mar-19

Less than 3 months

345.68

432.16

3 months to 6 months

6 months to 1 year

Between 1 and 2 years

Between 2 and 5 years

Mare than 5 years

Total non-derivative liabilities

432.16

Contractual maturities of Security Deposit received

31-Mar-19

Less than 3 months

3 months to 6 months

6 months to 1 year

Between 1 and 2 years

Between 2 and & years

More than 5 years

Total non-derivative liabilities

Contractual maturities of Other Financial Liabilities

31-Mar-20

31-Mar-19

Less than 3 months

603.42

3 months to 6 months

522.04

6 months to 1 year

Between 1 and 2 years

Between 2 and 5 years

More than & years

Total non-derivative liabilities

522.04

(C) Foreign currency risk exposure:

(i) Foreign currency risks

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in
foreign exchange rates. The Company's exposure in foreign currency is in loans, debtors and advances denominated in
foreign currency. The Company is not resricting its exposure of risk in change in exchange rates. The.Company expects the

Indian Rupee to to strengthen and accordingly the Company is carrying the risk ofchange.jﬁlexchang_e' rétes,

Tl T
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The companys exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period expressed in INR, are as follows

Particulars 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Trade Creditor's
Uso 33,383.87 8,478
EUR 2,047.68 1,557
INR 26.87 7.07

(ii) Sensitivity of foreign exchange risks

The following table demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in USD exchange rates, with all other
variables held constant. The impact on the Company's profit before tax is due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets
and liabilities. The Company’s exposure to foreign currency changes for all other currencies is not material,

Particulars 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

USD sensitivity (33,383.87) (8,477.79)
INR/USD -Increase by 5% (31 March 2020-5% ) usb (125.834) (28.321)
INR/USD -Decrease by 5% (31 March 2020-5%) usb 125,834 29,321
EUR sensitivity (2,048) (1,557
INR/EUR -Increase by 5% (31 March 2020-5% ) usD (8,503) (6,049)
INR/EUR -Decrease by 5% (31 March 2020-5%) usD 8,503 6,049

(D) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risks. Financial
instruments affected by market risk include payables/receivables in foreign currencies.

(E) Interest rate

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the
Company's long term debt obligations with floating interest rates. The Company is carrying its borrowings primarily at variable
rate. The Company expects the variable rate to decline, accordingly the Company is currently carrying its loans at variable
interest rates,

The exposure of the company's borrowing to interest rate changes at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Particulars 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Variable rate borrowings 14,160.55 15,582.95
Fixed rate borrowings - -
Total borrowings 14,160.55 15,582.95

(i) Sensitivity of interest rate risk

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of loans and
borrowings affected. With all other variable held constant, the Company's profit before tax is affected through the impact on
floating rate borrowings, as follows:

Particulars 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Interest rates — increase by 50 basis points (31 March 2020: 50 bps) 78.33 77.91
Interest rates — decrease by 50 basis points (31 March 2020: 50 bps) 7 @833, (77.91)
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Additional Information requried by Schedule Il

(Al amournt Rs in Lacs)

Details of Dues to Micro and Small enterprises as defined under the MSMED ACT,2006 to the Extent of Confirmation

received:
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
The principal amount and the interest due thereon (to be shown 7578 9.45
separately) remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each
accounting year
The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 186, of the = =
Micro Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 along
with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the
appointed day during each accounting year
The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in 0.08 0.18
making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed
day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under
Micro Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006.
The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of 0.08 0.18
each accounting year; and
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the - -
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above
are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of
disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the
Micro Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006
Imported and indigenous raw materials, components and spare parts consumed:
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Food and beverage (excluding liquor and wine):
Imported a =
Indigenous
501.74 552.56
TOTAL
501.74 552.56
Liguor and wine
Imported i &
Indigenous
9 96.26 97.59
P 96.26 97.59
Components, stores and spares, cutlery, Crockery
Imported -
P 0.85
Indigenous
166.89 160.79
TOTAL 166.89 160.79
Details of goods traded by the company:
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
General Stores
Opening Stock
o 3.40 3.81
Purc
i 1.16 1.07
Net Sales- At Cost
0.96 1.48
losing Stock
¢ i 3.60 3.40
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46. Earnings in foreign currency {on accrual basis)*

Earnings in foreign currency 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Hotel earnings

-Usb 2.98 4.77
- INR 207.16 331.26
Expenditure in foreign currency _

Particulars 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Advertisement and business promotion 1.08 1.17
Membership and subscription 20.36 563
Commission and brokerage 53.97 33.10
Music Expenses 2.16 2.28
Value of imports on CIF basis

Particulars 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Component and spares parts 6.70 0.65
Capital goods - -

47. Capital management

For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all other
equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Company. The primary objective of the Company's capital
management is to maximise the shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the
requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The Group monitors capital using a gearing
ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Company's policy is to keep the gearing ratio between 30%
and 50%. The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, trade payables, less cash and cash

equivalents.

Particulars 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Borrowings (Note 15 & 19) 14,085 15,483
Trade payables (Note 20) 345.68 432.16
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (Note 10) 51.29 60.50
Net debt 14,380 15,855
Equity 8,000 8,000
Capital and net debt 22,380 23,855
Gearing ratio 64% 66%

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets
financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements.

Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and borrowings. There have
been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrewing in the-current period.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies of-pracesses for managing capital during mé'yéérs\ended 31st Mar, 2020
and 31st March 2019 S
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48. Segment reporting

The company operates in a single business segment namely, hotel business. Further the company considers no other
separate reportable segment as per Ind-AS-108, Operating Segments as notified under Companies (Indian Accounting
Standard) Rules, 2015 as amended. Hence, Operating segments as per Ind-AS 108 is not applicable to the company.

49. Covid-19 impact

Estimation of uncertainty relating to the global health pandemic on COVID-19:

The World Health Organisation declared COVID-19 outbreak as a pandemic on 11th March, 2020. The Indian government
based on potential threat to public health has taken a series of measures to contain the outbreak, which included imposing
lock-downs across the country from 22nd March, 2020 & was extended later but the imposed restrictions are being eased
slowly. The lockdown and restrictions imposed on various activities due Covid-19 pandemic have posed challenges to
business of the company. Under lock down guidelines mandated closure of hotel operations and cessation of air traffic and
other forms of public transport. This has resulted in low occupancies/shutdown of company's hotel. The company to combat
the situation and to keep losses to its minimum, has done budget reallocations, postponing & consolidation of planned
expenditure, pay roll restructuring etc.

The company has considered the possible effects that may result from the pandemic relating to COVID-18 on the company's
financial position. The associated impact of the pandemic is highly dependent on variables which are difficult to predict. The
company, based on current estimates, expects that the carrying amount of all property, plant & equipment, intangible assets,
trade receivables, inventories and other current assets will be recovered. In arriving at the assumption & estimates relating to
possible future uncertainties in the global economic conditions because of this pandemic, the company, as at the date of
approval of these financial statements has used internal and external sources on the expected future performance of the
company. The company has considered the impact of COVID-19 to the extent known available currently. However, the impact
assessment of COVID-19 is a continuing process given the uncertainties associated with its nature and duration. The impact
may be different from that estimated as at the date of approval of these financial statements and the company will continue to
closely monitor any material changes to future economic conditions.

50. The company has reclassified previous year figures to conform to this year's classification.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date
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